
Regular Council Meeting Agenda October 8, 2024, 6:30pm 

 
AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council  
Tuesday October 8, 2024 

6:30pm Regular Meeting of Council 
 

1. Call To Order 
 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 

3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council September 24, 2024 
 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240744 to 20240777 
 
 

6. New Business 
 

a) Public Works Update 3rd Quarter 
 

b) Parks and Safety Update 3rd Quarter 
 

c) ATCO Franchise Fee 
 

d) Fortis Franchise Fee 
 

 
7. Correspondence 

 
a) Lacombe County Council Highlights September 26, 2024 

 
b) Public Information Session Land Use Bylaw Amendments – October 9, 

2024, from 6pm to 8pm 
 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda October 8, 2024, 6:30pm 

c) Annual Yard Waste Clean-Up – Friday October 18, 2024 
 
 

8. Other Business 
 
 None 
 

9. Council Reports 
 

a) Mayor Greg Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Eastman 
c) Councillor Hansen 
d) Councillor Grimsdale 
e) Councillor Valiquette 

 
 

10. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024  

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 
September 24, 2024 

 
 
Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

held Tuesday, September 24, 2024, at 6:30 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal 
Office  
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Eastman 

   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Hansen 
   Councillor Grimsdale 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
Call to Order  Mayor Rathjen called the regular council meeting to order at 6:30pm 
 
Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 

Agenda 

Motion 173/2024 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT the agenda of 
the September 24, 2024, regular meeting be accepted.” 

        Carried 

 

Previous Minutes   
Motion 174/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Hansen “THAT the minutes 
of the September 10, 2024, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 
 

Financial  
a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20240695 to 20240743 

Motion 175/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Cheques No. 
20240655 to 20240694 be received for information.” 

           Carried 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024  

New Business 

a) Public Hearing: Bylaw 248-2024 – Sunset Heights Area Structure 
Plan 
 
Applicant: Town of Bentley – Development Officer Presentation 
 
Delegate: None Registered 
 

• The Public Hearing was called to order by Mayor Rathjen at 
6:35pm 

 
• The mayor asked members of the audience if anyone wished to 

speak regarding the matter prior to the Development Officer 
Presentation. No one from the audience indicated an intention to 
speak. 

 
• Marc Fortais – Development Officer provided a summary of the 

project in alignment with the New Business report submitted as a 
part of the council package.  

 
• As there were no registered delegates, the mayor closed the 

public hearing at 6:40pm. 
 

b) Bylaw 249-2024 – Sunset Heights Area Structure Plan 

Motion 176/2024 Moved by Councillor Grimsdale, “THAT Bylaw 249-
2024 Sunset Heights Area Structure Plan be given 2nd (second) reading on 
this 24th day of September 2024. 

        Carried 

 

Motion 177/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Bylaw 249-
2024 Sunset Heights Area Structure Plan be given 3rd (third) and final 
reading on this 24th day of September 2024; AND 

THAT Bylaw 178/2014 Summersault Area Structure Plan and all 
amendments thereto be repealed and replaced by Bylaw 249/2024 Sunset 
Heights Area Structure Plan this 24th day of September 2024. 

        Carried 

    

c) Asset Management Phase II 
- Presentation from Stantec Consulting 

Motion 178/2024 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT Mayor and 
Council accept the report as information.” 

        Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes September 24, 2024  

d) Parkland Regional Library System 2025 Budget 

Motion 179/2024 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT Mayor and 
Council approve the municipal per capita requisition for the Parkland 
Regional Library System (PRLS) in the amount of $9.81; AND 

THAT Mayor and Council support the 2025 Proposed Parkland Regional 
Library Budget as presented.” 

        Carried 

 

Correspondence 

a) Lacombe County Council Highlights September 12, 2024 
b) Good Neighbor Day Poster – September 25 3:30pm to 7:30pm 
c) Hazardous Waste Roundup (LRWSC) – Bentley Transfer Site Oct 5, 

2024, 1:00pm to 4:45pm 
d) Annual Yard Waste Clean up – Friday October 18, 2024 

 

Motion 180/2024 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman, “THAT 
correspondence item a to d be accepted as information.” 

        Carried 

 

Other Business  

a) Notice of Public Meeting October 9, 2024 – Proposed Town of 
Bentley Land use bylaw Consolidation and Changes 

The intent is to provide sufficient notice to the public regarding the potential 
Land Use Bylaw changes. The information session will use display boards to 
highlight the key changes and provide an opportunity for the public to ask 
questions of administration and our planning representatives from Parkland 
Community Planning Services.  

 

Adjournment 

Motion 181/2024 Moved by Pam Hansen, “THAT the regular meeting of 
council September 24, 2024, be adjourned at 7:59pm. 

        Carried 

 

 

  
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 







 Public Works Report October 8th 2024 
 

Water 
May 2024 Water Summary 

There was no analysing done in this month 

There were no operational problems, incidents, or concerns 

No failed bacterioligical samples  

  

 

 



 

June 2024 Water Summary 

There was no analysing done in this month 

There were no operational problems, incidents, or concerns 

No failed bacterioligical samples 

 

July 2024 Water Summary 

There was no analysing done in this month 

Aquatech replaced the butterfly valve between reservior 2 and the clear well 

No failed bacterioligical samples 



 

August 2024 Water Summary 

There was no analysing done in this month 

There were no operational problems, incidents, or concerns 

No failed bacterioligical samples 



 

September 2024 Water Summary 

There was no analysing done in this month 

There were no operational problems, incidents, or concerns 

No failed bacterioligical samples 



 

 
 
Power/Control Cables  
 

• Conduits running between the Pump House/Injector Building compromised during 2012 

Water Well 3 installations. 

• Conduit was daylighted. 

• Broken sections were repaired temporarily in September (Outlaw Electric)  

• Teck cable will replace the conduit in the spring. 

• We will move the lines further to the west to avoid further issues.  

• UPDATE: Jeremy Park (Outlaw Electric) has run the new lines & conduit between the 

Pump House/Injector Building, tie-in's will be done shortly.  

• We ended up rerouting the lines to the east wall. The steps had to be moved out 4’’ to 

accommodate. 

 
 



 
18” Clear Well Butterfly Valve 

• Aquatech has installed the refurbished Butterfly Valve in the clear well to Reservoir 2.  

• The valve that was removed has a broken pilot shaft, so the repair cost will be higher for this 
valve. 

Water Shutoff  

• 4917-52 Ave curb stop actuator pin replaced, valve was in good condition.  

 

Wastewater 
Annual Wastewater Release  

• Alberta Environment has requested that the Town seek alternative ways to release the treated 
wastewater this year due to drought. We have been in contact with Baytex Energy, to see if 
they can use our water for Hydrofracking. The earliest they can use our water would be July 
next year. Vesta Energy has also shown interest, but again the earliest is 2025. We may be 
able to hold off releasing this year as our levels are quite low compared to other years.  

Lagoon Valve 

• Valve #8 will need to be replaced; it is becoming increasingly harder to exercise. The casing 
has most likely been compromised rusting the components within the valve. 

High Pressure Flushing 

• Sewer Mains have been flushed. No serious concerns were found.  

Roads, Streets & Sidewalks 
50th Avenue sidewalk  

• (50th Street – Town Office Parking Lot) Sidewalk, gutters & plates replaced.  

Tree Removal 

• Campground tree belt (Poplars thinned out) 
• Railway tree (Dead, was removed) 
• 4637 49th Ave (Town owned tree fell in yard, removed and fence repaired) 

Crack Sealing & Line Painting 
 

• The Town’s asphalt crack sealing and line painting was completed in July by Alberta 
Parking Lot Service. 
 

 

 



Equipment 
Degelman plow  

• hydraulic cylinder replaced. 

Unit 10 

• 1995 Ford ½ ton needs a clutch replacement.   
• Should be replaced, potentially with a van with racks – utility van (could be used) 

 

Miscellaneous 
Library  

 
• Limitless Automatics & Doors has installed the automatic door system on the main entrance 

door. 
• Central air conditioner has been installed.  

 

Arena Eavestroughs 

• The Eavestroughs on the North and East side of the Arena have been replaced. (Henry’s 
Eavestroughing) 

Arena 

• The Public Works Dept. have painted the Arena Archway Sign (main entrance exterior) 



Parks & Safety Update

October 8, 2024



Tree Planting Southwest Entrance

 The warranty period is up for 
the Purple Spire Columnar 
Crabapple trees that were 
planted along 52nd Street. 

 The support stakes have been 
removed and the trees are in 
healthy condition. 

 Parks & Rec have been 
watering as needed and will 
fertilize each spring.

 Spruce trees by the entrance 
sign have been re-mulched 
and will be fertilized heavily 
in the spring to promote some 
healthy new growth.



- In September 2023, 32 trees along 50th Ave between 46 Street 
and 47 Street were diagnosed with European Elm Scale. An 
additional 16 trees along 50th Ave had evidence of Elm Scale.

- On June 23, 2024 Wild Rose Tree Service treated all impacted 
trees with TreeAzin insecticide. TreeAzin is a systematic 
insecticide that is injected near the base of the trees and does 
not pose any serious risk to people, pets or wildlife. 

- The initial treatment should eliminate about 80% of the pests. 
A second treatment will be applied in 2025 and trees will be 
assessed in 2026 for potential spot treatment.

- Dutch Elm Disease has been found recently on some trees in 
Edmonton. This is the 3rd time the disease has been found in the 
province. The disease spreads through Bark Elm Beetles laying 
eggs in dead or dying elm wood.

- There is annual vaccine that is 99% effective in preventing the 
disease available. Administration is looking into pricing and 
monitoring the spread of the disease to help determine whether 
we will apply the vaccine to Bentley’s Elms. 

Treatment of Dutch Elm





Seeding Grass at Retention Pond

- The retention pond by Sunset Heights 
was sprayed for weeds to eliminate 
most of the thistle and noxious weeds 
that were in the area. Ongoing 
spraying will be undertaken, as 
necessary. 

- Public Works then came in and 
leveled the berm along the top bank 
and rough cut mowed the area.

- Grass was planted and watered 
regularly all along the top of the berm 
and is beginning to become 
established. Further attention will be 
given to this area in 2025. 



Sod & 54 Ave Park

- Put down sod at the Town Office 
Park and at a property along 50th 
Street where a cc had been repaired.

- Dug out 6 spruce trees from behind 
the curling rink where the ice plant 
was installed and planted them in the 
54 Avenue Park. These will be 
mulched in the spring.

- One of the trees in 54 
Ave Park was found to 
have some Black Knot 
infection. All identified 
infected limbs have been 
removed and burned. 
Parks & Rec will continue 
to monitor the trees for 
infected branches.



Other Updates

- Painted several of the benches around town.

- Flower order has been submitted for 2025.

- Taking another horticulture course this winter and doing 
a pesticide applicator workshops with Olds College.

- Another great year with summer staff.



Safety Update

 The draft Health and Safety Policy 
and Contractor Pre-qualification 
form have been reviewed by staff. 
Final Review will be undertaken by 
the CAO and then placed on the 
agenda for consideration of Council 
approval. 

 More safety documents will be 
drafted this winter including 
Standard Operating Procedures and 
Hazard Assessments for mowing at 
the lagoons and work done on 
Mainstreet.



October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – ATCO Gas & Pipelines Franchise Fee 2025 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Date:  October 8, 2024 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

ATCO Gas & Pipelines Franchise Fee 2025 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council set the natural gas distribution system franchise fee percentage for the 
2024 November deadline related to the Franchise Fee Collected in the 2025 year at 12%. 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The Town of Bentley has a natural gas distribution system franchise agreement with ATCO Gas. 
Pursuant to that agreement and the Municipal Government Act, Section 45 (Non municipal public 
utilities), the Town has the authority to collect this franchise fee. The fee is based on the “Delivery 
Tariff” revenue (gas lines/infrastructure) and does not include gas consumption.  
 
Annually, the Town of Bentley is required to notify ATCO gas, “prior to November 1,” of each year of 
the franchise fee percentage to be charged in the following year. A new contract and agreement was 
signed with ATCO beginning November 1, 2019, with a term ending October 31, 2034. 
 
Currently the franchise fee being charged for the 2024 year is 12%, and was approved at the October 
10, 2023, meeting of Mayor and Council. I have also attached, for your reference, a comparative 
listing of the other franchise fees collected by other municipalities in Alberta (Attachment #1).  
 
Administration is recommending that the franchise fee remain at 12% due to the continuing 
inflationary pressures on Bentley businesses and residents. Also attached to this report is a copy of 
the letter received from ATCO advising the Town of the requirement to advertise the franchise 
agreement within the community for the requirement for Alberta Utilities Commission Approval 
(Attachment #2).  
 
It should also be noted that if Council decided to change the franchise fee rate in 2024 for the 2025 
year, the process involves advertising the rate change in the newspaper with the widest circulation 
and we would also be required to obtain approval from the Alberta Utilities Commission. 
 
In addition, this year there is new Provincial Legislation (The Government of Alberta’s Utilities 
Affordability Statutes Amendment Act, 2024). The Act became law when it received royal assent on 
May 16, 2024. One of the changes in the act affects the gas distribution franchise agreement that we 
have with ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. (ATCO). Under section 49(5) of the Gas Utilities Act now  
 



October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – ATCO Gas & Pipelines Franchise Fee 2025 

 
states that a franchise granted by a municipality to an owner of a gas utility that has not been 
approved by the AUC after coming into force of this subsection will terminate 270 days after the 
coming into force of that subsection.  
 
Although our current agreement is valid, it must be reviewed and re-approved by the Alberta Utilities 
Commission (AUC) before March 17, 2025, or it will terminate by operation of law on that date. If it is 
terminated, all benefits provided under the agreement will end, including the payment of franchise 
fees to the Town of Bentley. The Town is working with ATCO to determine next steps in the process, 
including: 
 

1.) Advertising the franchise agreement to the community using a template. 
2.) Recording any feedback from residents 
3.) Responding to any feedback from residents and keeping records of our responses 
4.) Providing ATCO with all the information gathered.  

 
Administration is waiting for ATCO to supply the template, and it will be advertised when we receive. 
However, council can still review the rate to determine if they wish to continue to freeze it at 12%. 
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
For the 2025 year the forecasted delivery tariff revenue is $377,851 therefore based on a franchise 
fee charged at 12% the franchise fee revenue payable to the Town would be $45,342. (Attachment 
#3) 
 
Historical Information regarding Franchise Fees Collected from ATCO as follows: 

2014    $23,745 
2015    $27,925 
2016    $29,074 
2017    $33,119 
2018    $26,458 
2019    $31,790 
2020    $38,585 
2021    $43,047 
2022    $45,495  
2023    $35,000 
2024    $42,872 (Estimated)  
2025    $45,342 (Estimated) 
 
 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

• These fees are collected each year, and the funds are applied towards the current year’s 
capital projects, or if not utilized would be placed into a reserve account for future year’s 
projects. This is an effective method for the Town to raise funds to help pay for investment in 
infrastructure projects.  
 

• The Town has a signed agreement with ATCO for a franchise to provide natural gas services 
to the customers of the Town of Bentley in accordance with Bylaw 213/2019. (Attachment #4) 
 



October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business – ATCO Gas & Pipelines Franchise Fee 2025 

• Freezing the rate at the current percentage does not add additional burden to the local 
resident and business owner in a time that continue to be heavily impacted by rising costs due 
to inflation. . 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Franchise fees collected by other municipalities in Alberta 2024 
2. Franchise Fee Letter ATCO 
3. Natural Gas Franchise Fee Estimate 2025 
4. Bylaw 213/2019 

 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



















October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business Fortis Franchise Fee 2025 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  October 8, 2024 
      
Agenda Item:  New Business: 

Fortis Electric Distribution and Transmission Franchise Fee 2025 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council set the electrical distribution system franchise fee percentage for the 2024 
November deadline related to the Franchise Fee Collected in 2025 at 10%. 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The Town of Bentley has a distribution and transmission system franchise fee agreement with Fortis 
Alberta. Pursuant to that agreement and the Municipal Government Act, Section 45 (Non municipal 
public utilities), the Town has the authority to collect this franchise fee. The fee is based on the 
distribution and transmission revenue and does not include power consumption.  
 
The agreement provides essential electric distribution services, provides the authority for Fortis 
Alberta to operate and maintain the electrical distribution services and allows for the use of municipal 
right of ways for the provision of the services to the Town of Bentley and the community.  
 
The current franchise agreement is effective beginning October 1, 2023, for a 5-year renewal term to 
September 30, 2028. The agreement also provides for an additional 5-year renewal term after the 
expiry date of this renewal term.  
 
The Town of Bentley receives a portion of the revenue collected through Distribution and 
Transmission Fees to be paid back to the municipality each year. This rate historically has been set at 
10% and has remained unchanged for many years. The funds collected through the franchise fee and 
paid back to the Town of Bentley are utilized to fund Capital Projects that are much needed in the 
community.  
 
What are the benefits of a Franchise Fee Agreement: 
 

• Long term partnership for the provision of stabilized energy services 
• Provides another source of revenue to fund community capital projects. 
• There is an established service level commitment to maintain streetlights. 
• Cost of relocations and other grid modifications locally are offset by dollars collected through a 

rider. 
• Joint use of facilities 
• Reduction of liability to the municipality  
• Schedule B established for costs related to additional services. 



October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business Fortis Franchise Fee 2025 

 
It should also be noted, that annually, the Town of Bentley is required to notify FortisAlberta “prior to 
November 1,” of each year of the franchise fee percentage to be charged in the following year. 
  
Currently the franchise fee being charged for the 2024 year is 10%, and was approved at the October 
10, 2023, regular council meeting. I have attached for your reference a comparative listing of the other 
franchise fees collected by other municipalities in Alberta (Attachment 1).  
 
Administration is recommending that the franchise fee remain at 10% due to the continued impacts of 
inflation on local businesses and residents within the Town of Bentley. 
 
Administration has attached the proposed rate letter received from Fortis for the 2024 year 
(Attachment #2). It should also be noted that if Council decides to change the franchise fee rate for 
2024 for the 2025 year, the process involves advertising the rate change in the newspaper with the 
widest circulation and we would also be required to obtain approval from the Alberta Utilities 
Commission. 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
For the 2024 year an estimated delivery tariff revenue is $848,868 based on 2024 anticipated 
Distribution and Transmission charges revenue proposed by FORTIS, with the Franchise Fee 
remaining at 10% the franchise fee revenue payable to the Town would be $84,887. 
 
Historical Information regarding Franchise Fees Collected from Fortis and utilized for capital projects 
in the community are as follows: 
 

2014    $57,174 
2015    $60,470 
2016    $60,784 
2017    $63,505 
2018    $59,748 
2019    $68,153 
2020    $70,131 
2021    $73,339 
2022    $77,432  
2023    $78,899 
2024    $82,776 (revised estimated) 
2025    $84,887 (estimated) 

 
RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
• These fees are collected each year, and the funds are applied towards the current year’s 

capital projects, or if not utilized would be placed into a reserve account for future year’s 
projects. This is an effective method for the Town to raise funds to help pay for investment in 
infrastructure projects.  
 

• The Town has a signed agreement with Fortis for a franchise to provide electricity services to 
the customers of the Town of Bentley in accordance with Bylaw 168/2013. (Attachment 3) 
 



October 8, 2024, Council Agenda             New Business Fortis Franchise Fee 2025 

• Fortis Alberta has exclusive rights to provide electrical distribution services within the legal 
boundaries of the municipality as per authorization provided through bylaw 212/2019 
(Attachment 4) 
 

• Freezing the rate at the current percentage does not add additional burden to the local 
resident and business owner in a time that they continue to recover from the impacts of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and economic downturn. 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. 2024 Franchise fees collected by other municipalities in Alberta. 
2. 2025 Fortis Alberta Proposed Rate Letter 
3. Bylaw 168/2013 Bylaw to enter into a Franchise Agreement with Fortis Alberta 
4. Bylaw 212/2019 Bylaw to prohibit other persons from providing electrical distribution service 

within the legal boundaries of the municipality. 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    

























 
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

September 26, 2024 
  
 
FIVE-YEAR RECREATION CAPITAL PLAN 
Council approved the 2025 – 2029 Five-Year Recreation Capital Plan as follows: 
 

• 2025 - Sandy Point Beach playground expansion 
• 2026 - Gull Lake Trail  
• 2027 - Kuhnen Park boardwalk construction 
• 2028 - Trans Canada Trail Phase III construction 
• 2029 - No proposed projects 

These projects are subject to Council budget approval. 

FIVE-YEAR BRIDGE PROGRAM 
Council approved the Five-Year Bridge Program, including the 2025 capital bridge projects.  The 
proposed replacement projects for 2025 are as follows: 

 
• 364 – Range Road 27-1 south of Milton West Branch Road 
• 1758 – intersection of the Westling Road and Township Road 41-0 
• 6989 – Township Road 41-5.5 east of Spruceville Road 
• 1759 – Clive North Access south of Milton Road 

Additionally, there is a major repair to Bridge 81262 on Milton Road west of Highway 821 scheduled for 
2025. 
 
2025 UTILITY SERVICES CAPITAL PURCHASES 
Council approved the 2025 Utility Services capital equipment purchase of two half-ton trucks utilized by 
the County’s utility operators.  The County Manager was authorized to tender and award the capital 
purchases and dispose of/transfer the used equipment. 
 
REMOTE SHOP SOLAR SYSTEM EXPANSION 
$120,000 will be included in the 2024 Lacombe County budget to fund the expansion of the solar arrays 
at the Rainy Creek and Tees remote shops.  The County Manager was authorized to pursue grant 
funding through the Municipal Electricity Generation program. 
 
MUNICIPAL FOOD WASTE DIVERSION PILOT PROGRAM 
Lacombe County will participate as a partner municipality in the Municipal Food Waste Diversion Pilot 
Program (MFWDPP) which will allow County residents to purchase FoodCycler counter compost units 
at a subsidized price.    
  
RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA (RMA) 2024 FALL CONVENTION 
All Councillors will attend the upcoming Rural Municipalities of Alberta Fall Convention and Trade Show 
will take place November 4 – 7, 2024 at the Edmonton Convention Centre.   
 
MEETING WITH RCMP AT RMA 2024 FALL CONVENTION 
The invitation for Council to meet with members of the RCMP during the RMA 2024 Fall Convention 
was received for information. 
 
 



                                                                                      
 
 
  
 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 
 

 
COUNCIL CANDIDATE ORIENTATION 
To encourage public interest in running for municipal office in the next election, and provided that there 
is sufficient interest from the parties involved, Lacombe County, in partnership with the City of 
Lacombe, and the towns and villages within the County (with the exception of the Summer Villages), 
will offer a Regional Council Candidate Orientation session in late summer or early fall 2025. 
 
ALBERTA COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP GRANT – VILLAGE OF ALIX INFRASTRUCTURE 
MASTER PLAN 
Lacombe County will participate in the Alberta Community Partnership Grant application with the 
Village of Alix for the purpose of completing an Infrastructure Master plan.  The Village of Alix will be 
designated as the managing partner for this project.  
 
BASHAW RURAL PRIMARY CARE HEALTH MODEL 
Christine Buelow and Jackie Northy of Bashaw and District Support Services provided Council with a 
presentation regarding the Bashaw Rural Primary Health Care Model.  The County Manager was 
directed to prepare a report and recommendation regarding The Bashaw Rural Primary Care Health 
Model, for consideration at a future Council meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
October 10, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

October 1, 2024 – 9:00 a.m. 
 

Lacombe County Administration Building 
**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting minutes. All 

meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com) after approval.  
 
 
 

http://www.lacombecounty.com/


 
 

       
    Public Information Session Notice 

           October 9, 2024 (6:00pm to 8:00pm) 
      Land Use Bylaw Proposed Changes 

 
The Municipal Government Act (MGA) provides a hierarchy of documents for Land Use Planning in 
Alberta. Each level is required to be consistent with the level above it and below it, and that the 
policies or regulations within the planning document(s) at each level may be implemented by those 
below them in the decision-making process.  
 

 
 
All municipalities are required to adopt a land use bylaw. The land use bylaw divides the municipality 
into districts, establishes development standards within each district and provides for a system for 
issuing development permits and managing development within the community.  
 
In alignment with the Strategic Direction of Mayor and Council and in response to community vision 
aspiration and needs, the Town of Bentley is undertaking amendments to the Land Use Bylaw. 
 
We cordially invite you to join us on October 9th to share your ideas and thoughts with us regarding 
the proposed amendments to the Land Use Bylaw. This public information session aims to provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to engage with the administration and our contracted planners 
through Parkland Community Planning Services (PCPS) to review and understand the proposed 
changes in the bylaw. This session will provides an opportunity for questions, feedback and gain a 
broader understanding of a key document for the municipality that will regulate future development 
within the community.  
 
The session will be held at the Senior’s Drop-In at 4918 50th Ave between 6:00pm and 8:00pm on 
Wednesday October 9, 2024. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Marc Fortais 
Chief Administrative Officer 

Box 179, Bentley AB T0C 0J0 
Ph. 403.748.4044 | Fx. 403.748.3213 

info@TownofBentley.ca 
www.TownofBentley.ca 

mailto:info@TownofBentley.ca
http://www.townofbentley.ca/




 

 

Greg Rathjen 

Council Report September 2024 

 

• September 10  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• September 19  Mayor Central Alberta – Innisfail 
- Representatives from Alberta Municipalities, 

discussion on Provincial Policing, importance of 
asset management (may lead to requirement for 
qualifying for government grants) 

 
• September 24  Regular Council Meeting 

 
• September 25,26,27 Alberta Municipalities Conference Red Deer 
 
• September 25  Good Neighbor Day Celebration  

 
 
 

Mayor Greg  
Bentley THE PLACE TO BE  

 



 

 

Lenore Eastman 

REPORT September 2024 

 

 

• September 10, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• September 23, 2024,  Lacombe Foundation Meeting 
- Discussing affordable housing needs 

assessment. 
https://www.alberta.ca/affordable-housing-
needs-assessment 
 

• September 24, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• September 25, 2024,  Good Neighbor Day 
 

• September 25-27, 2024, Alberta Municipalities Conference 
- Enjoyed seeing other councillors from other 

communities 
- Went to 3 sessions 

o Building housing to support 
communities and improve affordability 

o Council – CAO relationship, ensuring 
effective governance through respect 
and collaboration 

o Cities game show: the most mid-size 
show on earth 

- The conference ended with entertainment and 
a bagged lunch 

 
 

https://www.alberta.ca/affordable-housing-needs-assessment
https://www.alberta.ca/affordable-housing-needs-assessment


 

 

Pam Hansen 

REPORT FOR September 2024 

 

 

• September 10, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• September 11, 2024,  Bentley Library Meeting 
 

• September 12, 2024,   Parkland Library Meeting 
 

• September 24, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 
 

• September 25, 2024,  Good Neighbor Day 
 

• September 25-27, 2024,  Alberta Municipalities Convention 
 
 

 



 

 

Dale Grimsdale 

REPORT FOR September 2024 
 
 
 

• Sept 10, 2024,   Regular council meeting 
 

• Sept 23    Bentley Parent School Board meeting- Highlights include, Trustee report,  
Elementary and High school updates ( enrollment at 432 this year), 
announcement of additional Vice Principal Jill Howe. Parent Council 
Nominations and election. Social Emotional Learning Presentation (S.E.L) 
Wolf Creek was able to secure a grant in 2022 that went to facilitate this 
program. It goal is to build competency in students in problem solving, 
stress management, self esteem, social skills and positive feelings and is 
tied to the curriculum. It has proven to help in more success in school.  
 

• Sept 24     Regular council meeting 
 

• Sept 25    Good Neighbor Day – Bentley AG Centre 
 

• Sept 25- 27, 2024   Alberta Municipalities Convention in Red Deer AB.  Highlights include- I  
attended the following workshops: Yes and? Improv-ing your way to 
leadership, A Collaboration Carol: The Red Deer Story and Unpacking EPR: 
Challenges, Progress and Next Steps for Waste Management. I attended 
the opening ceremonies, Trade show, Premier Remarks and Official 
Oppositions remarks. I attended the Municipal affair remarks. I voted in 
all resolutions put forward by the municipalities for Lobbying. I attended 
the AGM and both Minister Dialogue and Q and A sessions. Closing 
Ceremonies and the Atco, Fortis, RMRF LLP, Alberta Council, Brownlee LLP 
and the City of Red Deer Reception Networking events. This was a great 
convention where I learned a lot and got to meet and collaborate with 
many different members of municipalities  

 
 



 

 

Brenda Valiquette 

REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2024 

 

 

• September 10, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 
- Gull Lake Watershed discussion 

 
• September 24, 2024,  Regular Council Meeting 

- Asset Management 
o Water/Wastewater/Storm/Pavement 
o 10 km roads paved in town 
o Underground pipes 60% VCT (Vitrified 

Clay Tile) and 40% PVC 
 
 
 

 


	Agenda -October 8, 2024 - Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	October 8, 2024 - Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes September 24, 2024
	Cheque Listing 20240744 to 20240777
	New Business October 8, 2024 - Public Works Report October 8th 2024
	New Business October 8, 2024 - Parks & Safety Update October 2024
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	New Business October 8, 2024 ATCO Franchise Fee
	Attachment #1 - ATCO Franchise Fees Comparative Listing
	Attachment #2 - ATCO Franchise Fee Letter
	Attachment #3 - Natural Gas Franchise Fee Estimate 2025
	Attachment #4 - Bylaw 213-2019 ATCO Gas Franchise Fee
	New Business October 8, 2024 -  Fortis Franchise Fee for the 2025 Calendar Year
	Attachment #1 - Fortis Franchise Fees Comparative Listing
	Attachment #2 - Fortis Franchise Fee Letter
	Attachment #3 - Bylaw 168-2013 Bylaw authorizing Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer to Enter into Franchise Agreement with FORTIS Alberta
	Attachment #4 - Bylaw 212-2019 Fortis Franchise Fee
	Correspondance - Lacombe County Council Highlights September 26, 2024
	Correspondance - Public Informations Session - LUB amendment October 9 6pm to 8pm
	Correspondance - Annual Yard Waste Clean-up
	Council Report - Greg Rathjen September 2024
	Council Report - Lenore Eastman September 2024
	Council Report - Pam Hansen  September 2024
	Council Report - Dale Grimsdale September 2024
	Council Report - Brenda Valiquette September 2024

